
 

 

San Francisco Bay Trail 
Winter Board Meeting

Thursday. December 12, 2013  3:00 pm – 4:45 pm
Cerruti Cellars

100 Webster Street, Suite 100, Oakland
 (Map Enclosed)

 

The Board may act on any item on the agenda 

 Agenda topics 
3:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
4:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Business Meeting Call to Order 
 
Introductions / Agenda  
 

- Adopt agenda 
- Adopt June 27, 2013  meeting minutes* 
- Board announcements 
- Staff announcements 

 
 
Consideration of San Francisco Bay Restoration 
Authority Support* 
 
Consider formal support for the mission of the San 
Francisco Bay Restoration Authority to establish a 
funding stream for San Francisco Bay habitat restoration, 
flood protection and shoreline public access. 
 
 
Bay Trail Marketing Update* 
 
The board will hear an overview of recent  marketing 
accomplishments, provide feedback on board 
participation and discuss 2014 martketing priorities.  
 
 
Adoption of 2014 Priority Tasks* 
 
The board will review and consider formal adoption of 
priority tasks for 2014. 
 
 
Board Composition* 
 
Discussion of board composition as it relates to the Bay 
Trail bylaws and review of recommendations for 
additions to board representation. 
 
 
 

Chair/Board/Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff / Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DeBra / Thompson  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff / Board 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff / Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 

continued on next page 



 
 
4:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
4:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
4:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
4:45 p.m. – 5:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
5:15p.m. – 6:30 p.m. 

 
 
Election of New Bay Trail Board Chair* 
 
Consider appointment and vote for new Chair of the Bay 
Trail Board of Directors.   
 
 
Recognition of Brian Wiese’s service to the Bay Trail 
Project 
 
 
 
Adjourn Meeting 
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
Bay Trail Stroll 
 
Join Sandy and Bill Threlfall for  a walk along the Bay 
Trail at Jack London Square. 
 
Cerruti Cellars Wine Tasting 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Staff / Board 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  *Denotes agenda material attached 

 Additional attachments: 

Meeting map and directions, RSVP form 

 

 



 

 1

San Francisco Bay Trail 
Spring 2013 Board Meeting Minutes 
Richardson Bay Audubon Center 

June 27, 2013 
 
Call to Order 

 
Meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 

Attendance 
 
Board Members   
Chair: Brian Wiese    Bruce Beyaert 
Co‐Chair: Tom Huening  Ellen Johnck 
Jim Foran  Sean Co 
Julia Miller  Dave Mitchell 
Julie Bondurant  Philip Sales 
Joe LaClair  Rick Parmer 
Don Weden  Judy Malamut 
Corinne DeBra  Bill Long 
Rosemary Corbin   
 
Bay Trail Advisory Council 
Linda Stonier 
 
Staff   
Laura Thompson, Project Manager 
Maureen Gaffney, Bay Trail Planner   
Lee Huo, Bay Trail Planner 

 
Introductions / Agenda / Announcements 

 
Wiese brought the Board meeting to order and introductions were made. 
 
Agenda/Minutes 
 
ACTION:  Adoption of 06/27/13 agenda and 09/19/12 minutes 
 

Huening moved, Corbin seconded adoption of the agenda.   
  Miller moved, LaClair seconded adoption of the minutes.   

 
The agenda and minutes were approved unanimously. 

 
Board Announcements 
 
‐Johnck  Announced that she has been appointed by the mayor of San Francisco 

to the historic preservation commission. 
 



 

 2

‐Corbin  Informed the board that she serves as chair of historic preservation 
commission for the City of Richmond.  Brought to the board’s attention 
that two Richmond residents, Kate Lord and a friend of hers, are hiking 
the entire Bay Trail.  They hike a couple days a week and a section at a 
time.  Asked her to write up something about it. Good activity for senior 
citizens. 

 
‐Miller  Informed the board that she joined Kurt Schwabe during his walk in 

Sunnyvale, brought articles from the local paper.  The walk is creating 
great media attention. 

 
‐Beyaert  Mentioned that he also hiked with Kurt, gave him new refreshing 

perspectives on the Bay Trail from Pt Pinole to Pt Isabel.  Hiked along 
the edge of Giant Marsh through an undeveloped section. Four other 
Richmond people joined them. 

 
‐Parmer  Announced the development of the Bay Delta Conservation Plan, his 

new role at the State Department of Water Resources.  Informed the 
board that there may be opportunities through mitigation for Delta and 
Bay Trail.  Provided an overview of the plan and distributed hand‐outs. 
Final EIR/EIS will go out to the public in October.  At the fall board 
meeting, he could provide information that directly relates to the Bay 
Trail, related to climate change and the levees.  

 
‐DeBra  Mentioned that she also walked with Kurt for two days.  
 
‐Long  Provided a summary of Measure A in Marin County, ¼‐cent sales tax for 

Marin Open Space. 15% goes to cities/towns, 20% to agricultural  
preservation, 65% to Marin county parks.  Provides $6.5 million per 
year, for 9 years.  Will assist with doing a better job of managing 
shoreline lands.  

 
Wiese  Mentioned Measure DD, $198 million bond passed in 2002 by 80%.  

Well‐managed project can result in great improvements.  The main goal 
was to open up the Estuary waterfront.  It’s happening piece of piece.  

 
 
Staff Announcements 
 
‐Thompson  Recognized the new Bay Trail map sets, Bay Trail brochures and 

online/mobile maps.  Requested that the board help us promote these 
new products.  Provided an overview of Kurt Schwabe’s walk and recent 
press.  Informed the board that Doug McConnell will be presenting the 
Bay Trail and Ridge Trail as part of the California Historical Society’s 
Curating the Bay exhibit on July 25.  Also mentioned that ABAG has 
initiated an employee wellness program with incentives for hiking or 
bicycling segments of the Bay Trail. 

 



 

 3

‐Gaffney  Informed the board that we applied for Explore the Coast grant through 
the Conservancy to create a Bay Trail app working with Canogle.  Should 
hear soon whether we receive a $50,000 grant for three sites. Passed 
around a Golden Gate National Parks Conservancy EcoCounter data for 
the Bay Trail along Crissy Field, Bay Trail East Loop. $110,000+ bicyclists 
and pedestrians.  Information we can use to promote the use.  Marin 
County Dept of public works will apply for a PCA grant to repave the Mill 
Valley bike path and replace the bridges.  

 
‐Huo  Provided an overview of the Brooklyn Basin development, 64 acres 

along shoreline that includes about 2 miles of Bay Trail that have been 
required as part of the development, completed in phases.  After first 
phase, the developer is required to provide an interim Bay Trail 
alignment.  Oakland Army Base development project, planning to break 
ground in 2014.  Planning to realign two roads that encompass the Bay 
Trail connector to the East Span of the Bay Bridge.  Recently completed 
the Fremont Gap Study at the Santa Clara/Alameda County border. Lake 
Merritt improvements made through Measure DD and the Lake Merritt 
channel.  

 
 
Richardson Bay Audubon Center Welcome 
 
 
‐Wellwood  Jordon Wellwood, director of the Richardson Bay Audubon Center & 

Sanctuary, part of Audubon California, provided an overview of the 
meeting location.  It is one of two Audubon nature education centers in 
California.  The center is a sanctuary for birds and offers numerous 
nature education programs for children.  Audubon owns 900 acres of 
the bay.  A strategic plan underway focusing on conservation and 
education in the area.  The center uses volunteers and has a staff of six 
people.  

 
 
Bay Trail Strategic Plan Review and Adoption 
 
Wiese   Introduced the strategic plan as a landmark for the Bay Trail.  In twenty 

years, the project has seen tremendous changes in the way the 
organization works.  The last 15 years have been transformative.  With 
park bond grants, we have expended over $16 million on 127 projects.  
We have established long‐standing staff and the Bay Trail name is 
common knowledge to many people.  We have a very stable, long‐
standing board of directors, with strong dedication to achieving this 
ideal.  It has been 12 years since the last strategic plan.  No new state 
bond funding on the horizon.  This changes the way we function.  

 
Two main issues: 1) How do we adapt to changing times and remain 
effective in building the Bay Trail?  The sub‐committee concluded that 



 

 4

we need to go about it in a different way by establishing new 
partnerships and users, reaching out to the private sector, coordinating 
with other organizations and creating a marketing plan.  2) Staff 
capacity.  If we want to initiate new partnerships, staff will need 
assistance at a local or sub‐regional level.  We should consider 
reformulating the board’s mission.  Look to board members to be 
activists, acknowledging members like Bruce Beyaert through TRAC, 
Julia Miller through her work to open the Moffett Field Bay Trail 
segment and Tom Huening in San Mateo County working on Bair Island.  
We will look for new members, such as Corinne to help us tackle the 
challenges ahead of us.  Wiese acknowledged the other members of the 
Strategic Plan sub‐committee:  Don Weden, Bill Long, Julie Bondurant, 
and Corinne DeBra.  

 
Thompson   Introduced the discussion of strategic plan objectives and provided an 

overview of program accomplishments, upcoming reductions in grant 
program funding and ideas for changes in board representation. The 
board was asked to consider new funding development and board 
composition and the following ideas and themes were put forward: 

 
Partnerships/Coordination.   
 
Add new task under Objective 4: Collaborate with other regional trail projects to 
increase support for the Bay Trail and other regional trails.  This collaboration will be 
made between Ridge Trail, Bay Trail, Vine Trail and Water Trail. 
 
Add text to Task 4(d):  Enhance the role of the Bay Trail in protecting natural and 
cultural resources and promoting conservation‐related values. 
 
New Funding Strategies. 
 
Explore different strategies for fund raising, recognizing that advocates are not 
necessarily good fundraisers and our board has many members with government ties.  
Nonprofit boards can successfully solicit big donor grants from industries such as 
tourism, public health and hospitality.  Consider a “friends of” model or separate 
foundation for fundraising to make the distinction between the nonprofit and the 
government structure of the Bay Trail Project.  Consider creating a different board 
rather than augmenting the current board.  Explore raising funds around specific 
projects.  New sources such as public health and cap and trade should be considered. 
Seek advice from Bill Lockyer to put together this fundraising component since he has 
many contacts, significant experience and an ownership role.  
 
ACTION:  Corbin moved, LaClair seconded approval of the Bay Trail Strategic 

Plan.  The vote was approved unanimously. 
 
 
2013‐2014 Priority Objectives. 
 



 

 5

Rather than a separate list, highlight the priorities on one list.  
 
Develop action items, identified as priorities, for each fiscal year.  Identify who will 
accomplish each item: staff, board member or partner.  Take a more active approach to 
completing gaps.  Consider highlighting the top three gaps for each year.  At next board 
meeting, present a list that identifies the key gaps that we are focusing on in the next 
year and an overview of what is holding back each gap. 
 
In the coming months, staff will hone the priorities under the umbrella of the gap 
analysis. 
 
 
ACTION:  Huening moved, Miller seconded approval of the Bay Trail 2013 

Priority Objectives with the intent to turn it into an action plan.  The 
vote was approved unanimously. 

 
The board agreed that the marketing plan should be shown as a separate objective.   
DeBra will work with staff to develop an outline of the marketing plan, develop a sub‐
committee and bring recommendations to the Steering Committee and Board.  
 
 
Greenwood Beach Road Alignment Study 
 
Gaffney  Provided an overview of the gap in Tiburon along Greenwood Beach 

Road.  She summarized the results of the feasibility study conducted by 
the Town of Tiburon in partnership with Marin County. 

 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:15. 
 
 
Walking Tour of the Tiburon Bay Trail 
 
Board members and staff strolled along Greenwood Beach Road and the Tiburon Bay 
Trail.   



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

To:    Bay Trail Board of Directors 
 
From:    Laura Thompson 
 
Date:    November 27, 2013 
 
Subject:   Support for the San Francisco Bay Area Restoration Authority 
 

 
The San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority, created by legislation in 2008, is a regional agency 
with a governing board made up of local elected officials and the Executive Director of the State 
Coastal Conservancy.    Its purpose  is  to  raise  and  allocate  local  resources  for  the  restoration, 
enhancement, protection and enjoyment of wetlands and wildlife habitat  in San Francisco Bay.   
The attached Restoration Authority brochure provides more detail. 
 
The Restoration Authority is considering a regional measure across all 9 Bay Area counties that 
could create at least $150 million in new public funds over a decade.  These restoration projects 
will expand the Bay Trail as well as provide critical habitat for wildlife, and improve the bay’s 
health and resilience to climate change around the region. 
 
I’m on the Restoration Authority Advisory Committee representing the Bay Trail and shoreline 
public access.   The Authority offers a potential new source of funding to complete gaps  in the 
Bay Trail associated with wetland restoration.  Here are a few the major areas that include Bay 
Trail gaps: 
 

 Bel Marin Keys (Novato, Marin County) 

 Skaggs Island, Sears Point (Sonoma County) 

 South Bay Salt Pond Restoration Project (Union City) 

 Bruener Marsh (Richmond) 

 

The  Board  is  asked  to  consider  formal  support  for  the  mission  of  the  San  Francisco  Bay 
Restoration  Authority  to  establish  a  regional  funding  stream  for  San  Francisco  Bay  habitat 
restoration, flood protection and shoreline public access.   



THE 
FACTS ARE  
CLEAR 

when it comes to 

restoring  

the bay…

www.sfbayrestore.org

San Francisco Bay 
Restoration Authority



When it comes to the benefits of San Francisco 
Bay restoration efforts, the facts are clear. 
Restoring the Bay will: 

� Create thousands of jobs for Bay  

Area residents

� Restore tens of thousands of acres  

for wildlife

� Safeguard existing roads and 

infrastructure from the risks of flooding

� Improve water quality by removing 

pollutants

� Strengthen the Bay as an economic 

engine for the region

� Expand public access to Bay shorelines 

and open spaces

�  Protect a habitat for the 500 species  

of wildlife that call the Bay home 

San Francisco Bay is one of  
our nation’s greatest natural treasures 

and the defining feature of where we call  
home. But it won’t remain so without the  
necessary funding to protect and restore it  
for generations to come. 

Restoring San Francisco Bay isn’t just essential 
from an environmental or quality of life 
perspective. It’s equally important to expand 
bicycle and walking trails on public land, and 
to continue to strengthen our local economy 
with thousands of new, good-paying jobs.

That’s why environmental and business groups 
agree that funding Bay restoration is of vital 
importance to our region’s future. 

Funding Bay 

Restoration…

…is funding 

our future

“Local funding is crucial to protect 
the Bay’s natural shorelines,

sasafefeguguarardd hohomes andd bbusinesses 
frfrom flooding, and create thousands 

ofof j j bobss iin our commu inititieses.”.”

J IM WUNDERMAN, PRESIDIDENE T & CEO
BABABAYYY ARARAREEAE  CC COUOUNCIL



New Strategies 
for Funding Bay 
Restoration

Funding the restoration 
and protection of the Bay 

means funding a strong future for 
the environmental and economic 
vitality of the entire Bay Area. 
With all levels of government hit 
hard by budget cuts, innovative 
and robust strategies are needed to finance this 
critical work. The San Francisco Bay Restoration 
Authority was created in 2008 to find solutions 
to the need for new, local funding.

Securing a new source of local funding means 
those who live around the Bay Area — and who 
will see first-hand the jobs and other economic 
benefits of restoration — have a voice in keeping 
the Bay healthy and vibrant. And with significant 
opportunities for public-private partnerships 
and leveraging of state and federal dollars, the 
most important projects throughout the Bay will 
have the resources they need to succeed.

A New Approach to a 
Regional Issue

The Authority is considering placing a 
measure on the November 2014 ballot 

throughout the nine Bay Area counties to fund 
this work. Results from each county would be 
added together, and if two-thirds of Bay Area 
voters agree, restoration projects could see 
funding as soon as the following summer.  

Funding from this measure would allow for 
the restoration of thousands of acres of natural 
habitat for wildlife, support our local economy, 
improve access to public lands, address flooding 
issues, and create thousands of new jobs. A 
regional approach means that critical projects 
from Sonoma to San Jose will see new progress, 
allowing us all to benefit from a healthier and 
more vibrant Bay.

Local funding for  
Bay restoration means 
local jobs and economic 
activity across the  
entire Bay Area. 

Critical flood 
control and 
restoration 
projects will 
receive the 
funding they 
need.



KNOW  THE  FACTS 

 about San Francisco Bay

AT OVER 1 ,600  SQUARE MILES,  
the Bay is the largest estuary west of the 
Mississippi River.

SCIENTISTS AGREE  that the Bay needs 
at least 100,000 acres of healthy wetland 
habitat to function effectively. But as of 
2012, only 45,000 acres exist.

THROUGHOUT THE BAY,  some 32,000 
acres of former marsh are already in public 
ownership, waiting to be restored.

T H E  B AY  S U P P O R T S  more than  
500 species of wildlife, including over 100  
threatened and endangered species.

OVER 310 MILES  of Bay Trail connect our 
shoreline communities to hundreds of parks, 
open spaces and agricultural lands across 
the Bay Area. 

187,000 ACRES  of baylands have been 
diked off from the tides or filled since the 
mid 1800’s. To date, only a small fraction 
have been restored.



� Each year, 

over $60 billion 

in imports and 

exports pass 

through the  

Bay. The Port

of Oakland alone supports more than  

$2.1 billion in direct business revenues,  

and almost 30,000 local jobs. 

�� Three quarters of the nation’s $150 

billion fishing industry are dependent upon 

estuaries like San Francisco Bay.

�� From the garlic fields of Gilroy to rolling 

Wine Country hillsides, Bay Area tourism is 

big business, with over $24 billion in tourism 

spending in 2010, supporting over 178,000 

jobs across the region. 

�� Bay restoration means local jobs that 

can’t be exported. Recently completed 

projects have generated as many as  

30 jobs for every $1 million invested.

�� With benefits to Bay communities from 

flood protection, expanded public access 

and recreation, increased habitat for wildlife, 

and thousands of local jobs, the advantages 

of restoring the Bay couldn’t be clearer.

AN ECONOMIC  

ENGINE Protecting and 
restoring the Bay has 
clear and dramatic 
bbenefifits toto our local 
economy.



Learning  
from the Past 

In the decades following the Gold 
Rush, one-third of the Bay was 

diked off or filled for development. Plans had 
been drafted to fill 60 percent of the remaining 
shallow Bay, leaving only a narrow channel. By 
the early 1960s, residents had access to less than 
six miles of shoreline. The Bay was choked with 
raw sewage and industrial pollution. 

Today, thanks to 50 years of hard work by 
generations of residents dedicated to saving 
the Bay, we have been able to turn back the 
clock. Thousands of acres of habitat have been 
reopened to the tides, and more than 310 
miles of trails link our communities. Many 

important large-scale 
restoration projects are 
already underway.

But without the necessary 
funding to continue 
cleaning up pollution 

and protecting our region’s greatest natural 
resource, the progress of the last half century 
risks being lost. If Bay Area residents want 
future generations to enjoy the Bay as we do, 
we must act now to restore and protect it for 
generations to come. 

Taking Action for  
the Future 

With a population expected to 
grow by two million people  

over the next 25 years — an equivalent of two  
new cities the size of San Jose — there are 
dramatic challenges facing San Francisco Bay 
and its shoreline. 

Taking action now will ensure that we have 
the resources to prevent urban runoff from 
polluting the Bay, preserve critical habitat for 
fish and wildlife, enhance public access to open 
spaces, and protect homes and infrastructure 
from flooding.

Join us today!  
www.sfbayrestore.org  

Additional facts and links to source documents are available online.



The San Francisco Bay Restoration 
Authority was formed by the 

California Legislature in 2008. The Authority’s 
mission is to raise and allocate resources for 
the restoration, enhancement, protection, and 
enjoyment of wetlands and wildlife habitat in 
the San Francisco Bay and along its shoreline, 
as well as related public recreation and flood 
protection projects.

The Authority is led by a Governing Board 
of six members from local governments and 
chaired by Sam Schuchat of the California 
Coastal Conservancy. An Advisory 
Board comprised of private citizens, local 
stakeholders and experts on Bay issues 
supports the work of the Authority.

About the Bay 
Restoration 
Authority

Join us today!  

101 Eighth St., Oakland CA 94607

San Francisco Bay 
Restoration Authority

www.sfbayrestore.org



AN URGENT opportunity

Dutch
Slough

Montezuma
Wetlands

Napa Plant Site

Napa-Sonoma Marsh

Cullinan RanchSears
Point

Hamilton Field/
Bel Marin Keys

South Bay
Salt Ponds

Eden
Landing

Pond A18

Pond A4

Bair
Island

Novato

San Rafael

Richmond

Berkeley
Orinda Lafayette

Oakland

Alameda

San Francisco

South
San Francisco

San Mateo

San Carlos

Redwood 
City

Menlo
Park

BurlingamePacifica

Daly City

San
Leandro

Vallejo

Benecia

Martinez

Concord

Alamo

Danville

San Ramon

Pleasanton

Hayward

Fremont

Milpitas

Newark

Castro
Valley

Union
City

Pittsburg
Antioch

Walnut 
Creek

Mill Valley

Sausalito

Skaggs
Island

Chelsea
Wetlands

Breuner
Marsh

Aramburu Island

Arrowhead
Marsh

MLK Regional
Shoreline

Silicon Valley

Yosemite
Slough

Crissy 
Field

Bahia

Keystone Projects

Former Open Bay and Tidal Wetlands 
Converted to Other Uses (per 1850s survey data)

 Current Tidal Wetland Habitat
 Tidal Marsh and Tidal Mud Flats
 (includes both historical and restored)
 
 Diked (potentially restorable 
 to tidal influence)

 Filled and/or Developed Areas

5                                  0                                5                               10

MILES

Bahia

Sonoma
Baylands

Printed on paper made from 100% recycled fiber, 60% post-consumer waste. 

A broad coalition of supporters has championed improving the flood 

control capacity, as well as protecting and restoring lands surrounding 

the bay. Our urgent mission now is financing these improvements to 

safeguard the health of the bay and the surrounding communities.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

To:    Bay Trail Board of Directors 
 
From:    Laura Thompson & Corinne DeBra 
 
Date:    November 27, 2013 
 
Subject:  Bay Trail Marketing Update 

 

 
Since the adoption of the Strategic Plan in June 2013, the Marketing Sub‐Committee has had 
several conference calls to gather interests, develop working group categories and select a few 
items to move forward.  Thank you to those board members who have dedicated time to this 
effort and for your great ideas.  The purpose of this update is to: 1) highlight accomplishments 
and projects underway related to marketing the Bay Trail, 2) request board participation and 
feedback on how board members would like to be engaged in the project, and 3) highlight 
priorities for marketing in 2014, our 25th year. 
 
Events 
 
Many of our trail partners along the shoreline host group hikes, bike rides, birding walks, art 
exhibits and educational programs along the Bay Trail.  A great way to promote the Bay Trail is 
to promote our partners’ events!  A new events page was added to the Bay Trail website on 
September 12, http://www.baytrail.org/events.html  that highlights events of all types along the 
Bay Trail throughout the region.  Traffic to the site was a high as 520 hits during the month of 
October and as many as 25 events were listed during that month.  Our goal is to increase the 
listings and consistently provide a one‐stop‐shop for events on the Bay Trail.   
 
Attached is a preliminary list of organizations that regularly host events on the Bay Trail.  We are 
looking for board feedback on this list to let us know if we missed any organizations.  Also, in 
order for this to be successful and not too onerous on staff, we’d like board members to sign up 
for specific organizations to track the events and feed the information to Bay Trail staff.  Sign up 
if you’re interested (thank you Bruce for being the first one)! 
 
Presentations to Legislators 
 
The Coastal Conservancy has asked Bay Trail staff to meet with Assembly Members and 
Senators in shoreline districts to share Conservancy and Bay Trail grant program 
accomplishments and cultivate legislative champions.  These tailored presentations will include: 
accomplishments of the regional grant program; funded projects by district; and gaps by district 
including costs to complete remaining sections.  These presentations will give us a chance to 



Page 2 of 2 

 

meet directly with the legislators and the aides, to thank them for their past support and inform 
them of the funding necessary to complete the entire trail. 
 
Staff is also developing presentations to local elected officials, such as city councils, boards of 
supervisors and park commissions, in 2014 to showcase our 25th anniversary.  These tailored 
presentations will highlight what has been accomplished in these communities and raise 
awareness of the remaining gaps and funding needs.  
 
We anticipate these meetings to occur at the beginning of 2014. 
 
Quarterly Updates 
 
One of the products of our increased attention to marketing is the quarterly updates.  We 
started with the 3rd quarter of 2013, and attached is a 4th quarter update for this year.  These 
updates will be sent to the board on a regular basis so you can be informed of accomplishments 
and programs.  Our milestones are also posted on Facebook.  In addition to our quarterly 
updates, we will develop an annual report that highlights trail openings, events, grants and 
other news at the end of each calendar year.  Attached is an overview of 2013. 
 
Priorities for Marketing in 2014 
 
2014 marks the 25th anniversary of the adoption of the Bay Trail Plan by the ABAG Executive 
Board.  We will be convening conference calls for interested board members to discuss 
marketing priorities for the next year, and would like to get feedback from the board. 
 
 
     



   

Page 1 of 4 

 

List of organizations that host events and outings along the Bay Trail 
 

Area  General Event Description  Website 
Assigned 
person 

       

Region
       

Save the Bay  Shoreline habitat restoration  http://www.savesfbay.org/volunteer  

Greenbelt Alliance  Group walks and bike rides  http://greenbelt.org/participate/outings/ B. Beyaert 

Sierra Club, San Francisco Bay Chapter  Group hikes  http://sfbay.sierraclub.org/activities/  

Golden Gate Audubon Society  Guided birding walks  http://www.goldengateaudubon.org/field‐
trips/fieldtrips/  

 

Bay Nature Institute  Group birding walks and guided hikes  http://baynature.org/events/  

Bay Area Older Adults  Group hikes  http://www.bayareaolderadults.org/2014‐
bao‐hikes  

 

Acterra  EcoCalendar listing of hikes, birding 
walks and bike rides 

http://www.acterra.org/calendar/index.html  

California Coastal Commission  Coastal Cleanup Day  http://www.coastal.ca.gov/publiced/ccd/ccd.
html  

 

     

San Francisco
       

San Francisco Bicycle Coalition  Group bike rides  http://www.sfbike.org/?rec_rides
http://www.sfbike.org/?chain  

 

Golden Gate National Parks Conservancy  Ranger‐led hikes, bike rides, habitat 
restoration, cleanup, trail maintenance 

http://www.parksconservancy.org/get‐
involved/volunteer/  

 

Walk San Francisco  Guided walks  http://walksf.org/events/  

REI San Francisco  Hikes and bike rides  http://www.rei.com/stores/san‐
francisco.html?utm_source=google&utm_me
dium=local&utm_content=83&utm_campaig
n=localmaps#classesAndEvents  

 

San Francisco Recreation and Park 
Department 

Healthy Parks Healthy People group 
walks 

http://sfrecpark.org/events/  



   

Page 2 of 4 

 

Area  General Event Description  Website 
Assigned 
person 

     

San Francisco Maritime Museum  Historic walking tours, annual event  http://www.nps.gov/safr/planyourvisit/event
s.htm  

 

       

San Mateo County – Peninsula 
       

Midpeninsula Regional Open Space 
District 

Guided walks  http://www.openspace.org/activities/default.
asp?actFilter=All  

 

REI San Carlos  Hikes and bike rides  http://www.rei.com/stores/san‐
carlos.html#classesAndEvents  

 

Port of Redwood City  Port Fest  http://www.rwcportfest.com/    

       

Santa Clara County
       

Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition  Group bike rides  http://bikesiliconvalley.org/  

Western Wheelers Bicycle Club  Group bike rides  http://westernwheelersbicycleclub.memberl
odge.com/ride_calendar  

 

San Francisco Bay Bird Observatory  Guided birding walks  http://www.sfbbo.org/activities/  

Santa Clara Valley Audubon Society  Guided birding walks  http://www.scvas.org/index.php?page=text&
id=cal  

 

Friends of Bedwell Bayfront Park  Guided birding walks  http://www.friendsofbayfrontpark.org/calen
dar.htm  

 

REI Mountain View  Hikes and bike rides  http://www.rei.com/stores/mountain‐
view.html#classesAndEvents  

 

Don Edwards San Francisco Bay National 
Wildlife Refuge 

Guided tours, educational programs  http://www.fws.gov/refuge/don_edwards_sa
n_francisco_bay/activities.html  

 

Santa Clara County  Day on the Bay  http://www.sccgov.org/sites/d3/Upcoming%
20Community%20Events/Day%20on%20the%
20Bay/Pages/Day‐on‐the‐Bay‐‐A‐
Multicultural‐Festival.aspx  

 

Environmental Volunteers  EcoCenter art exhibits, bay walks  http://www.evols.org/events  

       



   

Page 3 of 4 

 

Area  General Event Description  Website 
Assigned 
person 

       

Alameda County
       

East Bay Regional Park District  Guided walks, bike rides, birding 
excursions + Healthy Parks Healthy 
People walks, sand castle/sculpture 
contest at Crown Beach 

http://www.ebparks.org/activities
http://www.ebparks.org/activities/hphp/HPH
PBayArea#Early  

 

East Bay Bicycle Coalition  Bike rides, Pedalfest  https://www.ebbc.org/calendar  

Grizzly Peak Cyclists  Group bike rides  http://www.grizzlypeakcyclists.org/rides/curr
ent.html  

 

Western Wheelers Bicycle Club  Group bike rides  http://westernwheelersbicycleclub.memberl
odge.com/ride_calendar  

 

Hayward Shoreline Interpretive Center  Walks, coastal cleanups, habitat 
restoration, art exhibits 

http://www.haywardrec.org/hayshore.html  

Fremont Freewheelers Bicycle Club  Group bike rides  http://fremontfreewheelers.org/html/events.
html  

 

REI Berkeley  Hikes  http://www.rei.com/stores/berkeley.html#cl
assesAndEvents  

 

Oakland Yellowjackets  Bike rides  http://www.oaklandyellowjackets.org/rides  

Don Edwards San Francisco Bay National 
Wildlife Refuge  

Guided tours, educational programs  http://www.fws.gov/refuge/don_edwards_sa
n_francisco_bay/activities.html  

 

City of Berkeley  July 4th fireworks, kite festival at Cesar 
Chavez Park 

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/Parks_Rec_Wat
erfront/Marina/Marina_Special_Events.aspx  

 

       

Contra Costa County 
       

East Bay Regional Park District  Guided walks, bike rides, birding 
excursions+ Healthy Parks Healthy 
People walks 

http://www.ebparks.org/activities
http://www.ebparks.org/activities/hphp/HPH
PBayArea#Early  

 

East Bay Bicycle Coalition  Bike rides  https://www.ebbc.org/calendar  

       



   

Page 4 of 4 

 

Area  General Event Description  Website 
Assigned 
person 

       

Grizzly Peak Cyclists  Group bike rides  http://www.grizzlypeakcyclists.org/rides/curr
ent.html  

 

Trails for Richmond Action Committee  Diverse outings along Bay Trail in 
Richmond 

http://www.pointrichmond.com/baytrail/cale
ndar.htm  

B. Beyaert 

Rich Rides  Bike rides in Richmond  http://richcityrides.com/ B. Beyaert 

Craneway Pavilion   July 4th fireworks, Homefront Festival  by 
the bay 

http://www.craneway.com/  

       

Solano County
       

       

Napa County
       

Napa County Bicycle Coalition  Group bike rides  http://www.napabike.org/calendar.php  

       

Sonoma County
       

Sonoma Land Trust  Guided hikes  http://www.sonomalandtrust.org/join_in/pu
blic_outings.html  

 

Sonoma County Bicycle Coalition  Group bike rides  http://www.bikesonoma.org/calendar  

       

Marin County
       

Marin Conservation League  Shoreline habitat restoration  http://www.conservationleague.org/commun
ity‐sp‐747233764.html  

 

Marin County Parks  Guided hikes  http://www.marincountyparks.org/depts/pk/
calendar  

 

REI Corte Madera  Hikes and bike rides  http://www.rei.com/stores/corte‐
madera.html#classesAndEvents  

 

 



San Francisco Bay Trail Board Report – 2013 Fourth Quarter Updates 

San Francisco Bay Trail Board Report  
2013 Fourth Quarter Updates 

 
 

Bay Trail Groundbreakings / Openings 
 
 
Berkeley Bay Trail Extension 
 
On October 25 the City of Berkeley opened a new section of 
the Bay Trail along University Avenue between Seabreeze 
Market and the Cal Adventures dock.  A ribbon‐cutting was 
held recognizing city staff, the Coastal Conservancy, East Bay 
Regional Park District and other partners that contributed to 
the project.  This is the first phase of trail development in 
the Berkeley Marina with a goal of a continuous trail around 
the entire marina area. 
 
 
Brickyard Cove to Shipyard III Groundbreaking 
 
In November, the City of Richmond broke ground on a new 0.27‐mile section of Bay Trail that will close a 
gap between Brickyard Cove and the Shipyard III trails.  Part of the 7.1‐mile Ferry Point Loop and 
Shipyard III trail, this historic recreation trail encircles Miller/Knox Regional Shoreline, passes through 
the Point Richmond Historic District and is part of the Rosie the Riveter/WWII/Home Front National 
Historical Park.  
 
Bair Island Bridge 
 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife and Ducks Unlimited constructed a 
bicycle/pedestrian bridge to Inner Bair Island using funds from the 
Bay Trail grant program, the Coastal Conservancy and the City of 
Redwood City.  The bridge provides access to new trails that will be 
constructed as part of the first phase of wetland restoration.   
 
 

Events 
 
 
Day on the Bay, Alviso 
 
Santa Clara County celebrated the fourth annual Day on the Bay 
celebration at Alviso Marina County Park on October 3.  The 
community gathered for food, music, hiking and kayaking and 
learned about the Bay Trail and the Water Trail at our information 



San Francisco Bay Trail Board Report – 2013 Fourth Quarter Updates 

booths.  The Water Trail officially dedicated its first Water Trail site with a ceremony at Alviso Marina 
County Park!   
 
Richmond Fleet Week Ride 
 
 

 
 
On October 3, board director Sean Co led a bike ride along the Bay Trail from Emeryville through 
Eastshore State Park, Pt. Isabel Regional Shoreline and through four parks along Richmond’s Marina Bay 
to the SS Red Oak Victory pancake breakfast.  The ride was one of many events along Richmond’s 
shoreline during Fleet Week. 
 
 
Kurt Schwabe Photography Exhibit 
 
Bay Trekker Kurt Schwabe compiled a series of photographs 
taken during his walk along 300+ miles of trail for an exhibit 
hosted by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission from 
October 1, 2013 – January 10, 2014.  The photographs, 
printed on dye‐infused aluminum,  capture the grandness of 
the bay and the unexpected sights along its edge.  
 
Bay Trail circumnavigation by foot 
 
In October, avid walker Erika Lockhart set her sights on 
walking around the entire bay by creating a Meetup group 
and inviting like‐minded hikers to begin the trek in January 
2014.  Walks will be completed in sections, using public transit  
as much as possible to get to and from the trailheads. 
 
 

Grants 
 
The Coastal Conservancy Board of Directors authorized a $50,000 Explore the Coast grant to the Bay 
Trail Project in October to create and launch a new mobile application with local app developer Canogle.   
Stories will be developed for four locations along the Bay Trail in Richmond, Napa, South Bay and 
Novato.  This tool will provide a new and exciting way to learn about the natural, historic and cultural 
resources along the edge of the bay. 
 



 
 

2013 was a busy year for the Bay Trail Project.  The Board of Directors adopted a 5‐year strategic plan, 

updated and redesigned maps were released, several major gaps in the Bay Trail were completed along with 
many other accomplishments throughout the year.  Following is a chronological list of major milestones. 

Tennessee Valley Connector Trail 
constructed in Marin County 

February. Tennessee Valley Trail 
connection to the Mill Valley‐

Sausalito Path was completed as a 
boardwalk adjacent to Coyote 

Creek. 

 

Participation in the 17th Annual 
Pacific Flyway Festival 

February.  Bay Trail and Water Trail 
staff participated in the Pacific 
Flyway Festival on Mare Island 
educating the public about our 

regional trails. 
 

 

Release of new Bay Trail map set,  
brochure and online map 

May. Redesigned and updated 
maps conveniently packaged in a 
25‐card box were released along 
with a full‐map brochure.  A 

companion on‐line map featured 
on the Bay Trail website also 
includes mobile map access. 

 

Adoption of 5‐Year Bay Trail 
Strategic Plan (2013 – 2018) 

June.  The Bay Trail Board of 
Directors adopted a 5‐year 

strategic plan (2013 ‐ 2018) with six 
primary objectives to implement 

the Bay Trail vision. 

 

Kurt Schwabe’s Bay Trail Trek  June.  Kurt Schwabe 
circumnavigated the Bay Trail by 
foot during the month of June, 
taking photographs and bringing 
press attention along the way. 

 

ABAG Wellness Program  June.  First annual trails challenge 
launched for ABAG employees 

promoting 5 hikes and 5 bike rides 
along the Bay Trail in Alameda, 
Contra Costa and San Francisco 

counties.   



 
 

California Historical Society with 
Doug McConnell 

July.  A packed house at the 
California Historical Society in San 
Francisco enjoyed a presentation 
by Doug McConnell on the Bay and 

the Ridge Trails. 

 

Bay Bridge East Span pathway 
constructed 

September. The Bay Bridge Trail 
and a 2‐mile link to Emeryville 
opened to the public with the 
official bridge dedication.  

 

Bay Trail / Water Trail Coastal 
Cleanup, Damon Slough, Oakland 

September. Joint Bay Trail/Water 
Trail Coastal Cleanup along Damon 
Slough in Martin Luther King Jr. 
Regional Shoreline.  Over 30 bags 
of trash collected along the Bay 

Trail! 

 

BioRad Groundbreaking in 
Hercules 

September.  The East Bay Regional 
Park District broke ground on the 
Biorad Bay Trail segment as part of 
the Hercules Intermodal  Transit 

Center Project 

 

Introduced new events page on 
the Bay Trail website 

September. Launched an events 
page on the Bay Trail website 
highlighting hikes, bike rides, 
birding excursions and more. 

 

Day on the Bay, Alviso Marina 
County Park 

October. Participated in the fourth 
annual Day on the Bay Celebration 
at Alviso Marina County Park and 

joined the Water Trail in 
designating the first official Water 

Trail site.   

 



 
 

$50,000 Explore the Coast grant 
from Coastal Conservancy 

October.  Awarded $50,000 from 
the Coastal Conservancy’s Explore 
the Coast grant program to launch 
a mobile application for four sites 

along the Bay Trail.  

 

New Berkeley segment 
constructed 

October.  Celebrated the opening 
of the Berkeley Bay Trail extension 
along University Avenue near the 
Marina in Eastshore State Park.  

 

Brickyard Cove to Shipyard III 
Groundbreaking 

November. The City of Richmond 
broke ground on the Brickyard 

Cove to Shipyard III segment of the 
Bay Trail. 

 

Grant Accomplishments 

Construction Grants completed   Pier 43 Promenade, San Francisco, 
.15 miles   

 
New benches, public access 

improvements and views are now 
part of the Fisherman’s Wharf 

experience.   

  Yosemite Slough Restoration Trail, 
San Francisco, 0.4 miles 

 
Phase 1 of the Yosemite Slough 

restoration project includes a new 
Bay Trail segment.   

  Bair Island Bridge, Redwood City, 
.03 miles 

 
Bicycle/pedestrian access is now 
complete to Inner Bair Island as 

part of a major restoration project. 
 



 
 

 

  Marina Green Zone H, San 
Francisco, .08 miles 

 
An improved approach to Fort 
Mason was completed along the 
Marina Blvd portion of the San 

Francisco waterfront.   

     

Planning Grants completed   San Jose Reach 9 Plans and Specs, 1.15 miles 

  Newark‐Fremont Realignment Study, 13 miles 

  Fremont Gap Study, 1.1 miles 

  Ferry Pt Tunnel to Cutting Blvd Design, Richmond, 0.2 miles 

  Grand Avenue Bridge Design, San Rafael, .06 miles 

  Greenwood Beach Road Feasibility Study, Tiburon, 1.6 miles 

  SMART/McInnis Parkway Design, Marin County, 0.27 miles 

     



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

To:    Bay Trail Board of Directors 

 

From:    Laura Thompson 

 

Date:    November 27, 2013 

 

Subject:   2014 Priority Bay Trail Tasks 

 

 
At the last Bay Trail Board meeting in June 2013, the Bay Trail Board of Directors adopted a 5‐

year Bay Trail Strategic Plan (attached).  The plan serves as a blueprint for project work and 

identifies specific goals and objectives that are important to the success of the mission.  

 

Bay Trail Strategic Plan Objectives 

 

Objective 1    Provide funding to implementing agencies in order to significantly 

advance the development of the Bay Trail alignment 

 

Objective 2   Explore outside funding sources that will continue to close gaps and 

substitute for grant funds that may no longer be available 

 

Objective 3    Provide technical assistance to implementing agencies and other 

appropriate entities to support development of the Bay Trail consistent 

with the adopted Bay Trail Plan 

 

Objective 4    Strengthen partnerships with decision‐makers and key‐constituencies  

 

Objective 5    Promote awareness of the Bay Trail to increase use and build support 

for its completion 

 

Objective 6    Increase the organizational capacity of the Bay Trail Project by 

enhancing the effectiveness of its staff and board of directors 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

At the same meeting, staff provided the board of directors with a list of priority objectives for FY 

2013‐2014.  The list was a subset of Strategic Plan objectives that had been identified as 

priorities.  The board requested that staff revise the list and present them as specific action 

items.  Staff was directed to include in the list who will accomplish each item and how each task 

relates to the Bay Trail Strategic Plan.  

 

Attached is a revised list of priority action items for calendar year 2014 as requested by the 

Board of Directors.  This list does not represent all the tasks we work on, but it provides a list of 

the primary tasks anticipated during the time period January – December 2014.  Many of these 

tasks are already underway, and some are anticipated to begin in 2014. 

 
In the future, this list will be presented to the Steering Committee for review with a 
recommendation for adoption by the full board in the fall of each year.   
 
At the December 12 meeting, the Board of Directors will be asked to review, comment and vote 
on these priority tasks for 2014. 



DRAFT 
2014 Priority Bay Trail Tasks  

 
 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Task  Responsible Entity  Strategic Plan Objective  Notes 

       

1)  Manage active planning and 
construction grants and work with 
the Coastal Conservancy to award 
grants under a new funding allocation 

Board / Staff / Partners  Objective 1 (a): Award and administer 
grants to implementing agencies for all 
aspects of Bay Trail development 

A $1 million block grant from the 
Coastal Conservancy is anticipated 
in Spring 2014.  Fourteen potential 
projects have been identified. 

2)  Expand partnerships with private 
corporations for specific gap closures 

Staff / Board  Objective 2 (a): Explore opportunities for 
private funding and partnerships 

Staff has established a working 
partnership with Google and will 
explore other corporate 
partnerships associated with Bay 
Trail gaps. 
 

3)  Participate in Adapting to Rising 
Tides focused working groups and 
provide input on climate action plans 

Staff  Objective 3 (a): Assist regional partners 
in assessing and addressing the impacts 
of sea level rise on the Bay Trail 

Staff continues to be involved in 
this regional effort and will engage 
in the focused workshops along the 
East Bay shoreline. 
 

4)  Complete revision to the Bay Trail 
Design Guidelines 

  

Staff  Objective 3 (c): Refine the recommended 
Bay Trail design standards regarding 
width, signage, surfacing and other 
aspects of trail design and development 

Staff will develop a detailed work 
program and hire a consultant to 
develop expanded Bay Trail design 
guidelines.  

5)  Meet with state legislators to 
share Conservancy/Bay Trail grant 
program accomplishments and 
cultivate legislative champions 

Staff / Partner  Objective 4 (b): Develop legislative 
champions at the state level 

Draft presentations have been 
developed and meetings will be 
scheduled in 2014 to promote the 
project and gather support. 



DRAFT 
2014 Priority Bay Trail Tasks  

 
 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Task  Responsible Entity  Strategic Plan Objective  Notes 

       

6)  Continue to implement the Bay 
Trail Marketing Plan 

Staff / Board  Objective 5 (a): Develop a Bay Trail 
Marketing Plan 

Develop e‐mail blast to replace 
newsletter, compile annual report 
and seek involvement from 
interested board members.  
 

7)  Complete regional sign plan 
installation 

Staff  Objective 5 (c): Work with implementing 
agencies to ensure that all developed 
segments of the Bay Trail are signed, and 
in a consistent manner 
 

Complete the regional sign plan 
and work with local jurisdictions to 
install recommended signs.  Seek 
involvement from interested board 
members. 
 

8)  Work with local agencies, Ridge 
Trail and other partners to host 
events and promote the 25th 
anniversary  

Staff / Board / Partners  Objective 5 (d): Encourage individual and 
group events to draw attention to the 
Bay Trail 

Work with ABAG’s 
Communications staff to organize 
events, conduct media outreach, 
and promote gap closures.  Seek 
involvement from interested board 
members.  
 

9)  Create a mobile application for 
destinations along the Bay Trail 

Staff / Board / Partners  Objective 5 (e): Develop attractive and 
effective promotional materials using 
traditional and new technologies 
 

A $50,000 Explore the Coast grant 
from the Conservancy has made 
this possible. 

10)  Find funding to redesign the Bay 
Trail website 

Staff  Objective 5 (e): Develop attractive and 
effective promotional materials using 
traditional and new technologies 
 

Seek funding to complete a 
wholesale redesign of the Bay Trail 
website. 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

San	Francisco	Bay	Trail	Project	Strategic	Plan	
2013	–	2018																			

Mission	
The San Francisco Bay Trail Project advocates  for  the  implementation of a continuous  recreation and 
transportation path around San Francisco Bay by coordinating the efforts of government agencies and 
other  partners,  providing  technical  assistance,  seeking  and  administering  funding  and  promoting  the 
trail’s benefits through education and outreach. 

Vision	
San Francisco Bay is ringed by a continuous recreational corridor made up of hundreds of miles of safe, 
pleasant and attractive  trails  that serve a wide  range of users.   This network, known as  the Bay Trail, 
almost always runs along the shoreline and typically travels on separated paths.   The Bay Trail  is used 
extensively for recreation, as a commute route, and as a setting for learning about nature.  It crosses the 
region’s  toll  bridges  and  reinforces  transit  use  by  passing  near many  public  transportation  facilities.  
Along it are found many points of historic, natural, cultural and recreational interest.  The Bay Trail has 
expanded  the  public’s  access  to  the  shoreline,  increased  appreciation  for  the  bay,  fostered  local 
economic development and waterfront planning, and  reinforced  the Bay Area’s  sense of  regionalism. 
The Bay Trail  is acknowledged as a uniquely valuable resource, and enjoys  the unwavering support of 
government agencies and the public. 
 
To  accomplish  these  goals,  the  Bay  Trail  Board  and  staff  will  pursue  the  following  Strategic  Plan 
Objectives during the next five‐year period. 

Objective	1.		Provide	funding	to	implementing	agencies	in	order	to	
significantly	advance	the	development	of	the	Bay	Trail	alignment	

 
a) Award  and  administer  grants  to 

implementing agencies for all aspects of Bay 
Trail development 

The Bay Trail Grant Program, in partnership with 
the  State  Coastal  Conservancy,  is  a  significant 
resource for trail completion that relies on state 
bond  funds.    An  additional  $1  million  will  be 
allocated  from  the  Coastal  Conservancy  in 
December  2013  with  no  additional  allocations 
on the horizon. 

b) Seek  operation  and  maintenance  funding 
solutions 

Local  jurisdictions and park districts are seeking 
a  steady  source  of  funding  for  trail  operation 
and maintenance.    Staff  continues  to  work  to 
develop solutions to this funding need. 
 

c) Revisit long term funding strategy annually  Staff reviews funding needs periodically with the 
board, project sponsors and partners. 

 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

Objective	2.		Explore	outside	funding	sources	that	will	continue	to	close	gaps	
and	substitute	for	grant	funds	that	may	no	longer	be	available	
 

a)  Seek  options  for  leveraging  public  funding, 
i.e. transportation, recreation, health, climate 
change and sustainable communities 

Use the Gap Analysis to set strategic priorities and 
determine funding needs; coordinate with 
congestion management agencies (CMAs) on 
transportation funds for trail development; and 
engage in the Sustainable Communities Strategy, 
Priority Development Area and Priority 
Conservation Area programs.   
 

b)  Explore opportunities for private funding and 
partnerships 

Develop  partnerships  with  corporations  located 
along the shoreline for general Bay Trail support or 
project‐specific assistance. 

Objective	3.		Provide	technical	assistance	to	implementing	agencies	and	other	
appropriate	entities	to	support	development	of	the	Bay	Trail	consistent	with	
the	adopted	Bay	Trail	Plan	

 

a) Assist  regional  partners  and  local 
jurisdictions in assessing and addressing the 
impacts of sea level rise on the Bay Trail  

Staff  participates  in  regional  and  sub‐regional 
initiatives to address the impacts of sea level rise 
on  the Bay  Trail and  to  ensure  that adaptation 
strategies include the Bay Trail. 

b) Update  and maintain  the  Gap  Analysis  to 
provide  the  status  of  remaining  gaps,  cost 
estimates and a timeline for completion   

The  Gap  Analysis  and  the  corresponding  GIS‐
based Bay Trail alignment are updated regularly 
as a tool for assessing the remaining gaps. 

c) Refine  the  recommended  Bay  Trail  design 
standards  regarding  width,  signage, 
surfacing  and  other  aspects  of  trail  design 
and development 

A  grant  from  the  Coastal  Conservancy  was 
awarded  to  the Bay Trail Project  to update  the 
design  guidelines.    Work  on  this  project  will 
begin in 2013. 

d) Assist  understaffed  local  agencies  in 
improving  their  trail‐development 
capacities 

This is an ongoing task for Bay Trail staff in areas 
where  communities  are  challenged  with  staff 
reductions. 

e) Participate  in  local development  review  to 
ensure optimum inclusion of the Bay Trail in 
relevant development projects 

Staff  regularly  comments  on  environmental 
documents,  participates  in  technical  advisory 
committees  and  bicycle  plan  task  forces  and 
provides public testimony at BCDC Design Review 
Board and Commission meetings. 

f) Participate  in  trail  planning  efforts  led  by 
other agencies 

Staff  participates  in  the  development  of  local 
bicycle/pedestrian  and  trail  plans,  regional 
planning  initiatives  and  partnerships  to  move 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

completion of the trail forward. 

g) Encourage  other  agencies  to  incorporate 
the  Bay  Trail  into  their  missions,  plans, 
programs, projects and policies 

Collaboration  with  shoreline  agencies  is  an 
ongoing process. 

Objective	4.		Strengthen	partnerships	with	decision‐makers	and	key‐
constituencies		

 

a) Produce  an  annual  report  that  details  the 
major  accomplishments  of  the  Bay  Trail 
Project  and  progress  on  the  development 
of  the  Bay  Trail,  including  legislative 
delegation as target audience 
 

An  annual  report  is  produced  for  ABAG’s work 
plan at the beginning of each calendar year.      It 
has  not  been  forwarded  to  the  legislative 
delegation in the past.  

b) Develop Bay  Trail  legislative  champions  at 
the state level 

The  project  has  a  history  of  success with  state 
legislative champions.     

c) Provide  frequent  recognition of supportive 
elected officials and dedicated advocates 

Supportive elected officials have been recognized 
in the past. 

d) Enhance  the  role  of  the  Bay  Trail  in 
protecting  natural  and  cultural  resources 
and promoting conservation‐related values 

 Fund  demonstration  projects  that 
exhibit  innovative  trail  designs  to 
protect natural resources 

 Extend and possibly expand the scope of 
the Wildlife and Public Access Study 

 Increase appreciation of the bay and  its 
natural  resources  by  such  means  as 
interpretive signage and route guides 

 

Several public resources have been developed to 
promote the Bay Trail’s role in promoting support 
for bay conservation, including the San Francisco 
Bay  Shoreline  Guide,  the  Bay  Trail  map  set, 
birding brochures, Bay Nature magazine articles 
and the Wildlife & Public Access Study. 

e) Work  with  state  and  federal  resource 
agencies  and  open  space  and  recreation 
advocates and partners  to  integrate public 
access  and  resource  protection  goals  and 
mandates 

This  is carried out along specific segments of the 
Bay  Trail  such  as  the  South  Bay  Salt  Pond 
Restoration  Project  and  the  Don  Edwards  San 
Francisco  Bay  National  Wildlife  Refuge.  More 
work  is  needed  to  integrate  these  two  goals 
around the bay. 

f) Collaborate/cultivate  partnerships  on  trail 
issues of mutual  interest and benefit  such 
as  alternative  transportation,  health  and 
recreation,  trails  as  a  desirable  feature  of 

Staff  works  with  MTC,  bicycle  coalitions  and 
CMAs  on  elevating  the  Bay  Trail  as  a  non‐
motorized  transportation  corridor.    The  project 
can  benefit  from  cultivating  partnerships  in  the 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

new developments, etc.  health field.   Staff regularly  interacts with public 
agency  staff and BCDC about  the Bay Trail as a 
feature of new development. 

g) Communicate  frequently  with  property 
owners,  public  and  private,  along  the 
proposed Bay Trail route to remind them of 
our mission and enlist support 

Interactions with property owners along Bay Trail 
gaps  occur  primarily  as  development  proposals 
are  initiated and also as  feasibility analysis near 
private  lands.   A more proactive approach could 
lead to increased support.  

h) Collaborate  with  other  regional  trail 
projects to increase support for the bay and 
other regional trails.   

Partner  with  Ridge  Trail,  Vine  Trail  and Water 
Trail  to  strengthen  effectiveness  on  common 
objectives. 

Objective	5.		Promote	awareness	of	the	Bay	Trail	to	increase	use	and	build	
support	for	its	completion	
 
a) Develop a Bay Trail Marketing Plan  Clearly show the steps that will be taken to meet 

the marketing objectives of the project.    Identify 
target audiences, key messages and tasks. 

b) Produce  updated  maps  of  the  Bay  Trail 
alignment for the public 
 

In May 2013,  the Bay Trail maps were  released 
to the public  in two formats: a physical map set 
in  the  form  of  a  deck  of  cards  and  an  online 
interactive  map.    The  online  maps  are  also 
available on mobile phones.   These maps are  in 
GIS  format  and  will  be  updated  on  a  more 
regular basis. 

c) Work  with  implementing  agencies  to 
ensure  that all developed  segments of  the 
Bay  Trail  are  signed,  and  in  a  consistent 
manner 

The Bay Trail Sign Program is a work in progress.  
Site  visits  have  been  conducted  and  sign  plans 
have  been  created  for  most  sections  of 
completed  trail around  the bay.   Over 100 new 
signs  have  been  placed  in  the  field  and  staff 
continues  to  contact  shoreline  managers  to 
install new signs. 

d) Encourage  individual  and  group  events  to 
draw attention to the Bay Trail 

During  the  Bay  Trail  Project’s  20th  Anniversary 
year,  we  co‐sponsored  several  events  with 
shoreline partners.   We also organized nine bike 
rides  around  the  region  for  the  board  of 
directors.    2014 will mark  our  25th  anniversary 
and  an  opportunity  for  using  new  strategies  to 
reach a wider audience such as blogs and social 
media rather than special event trail days.  

e) Develop  attractive  and  effective 
promotional materials using traditional and 

The  San  Francisco  Bay  Shoreline  Guide  was 
updated  and  released  in  2012  as  a  UC  Press 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

new technologies.   publication.    The  new  Bay  Trail  maps  and 
brochure were made available  in May 2013 and 
will be used as promotional tools.   The Bay Trail 
has  a  Facebook  page.    Looking  ahead,  the 
website  needs  to  be  completely  updated  and  a 
digital  newsletter  can  reach  a  wider  audience 
with more up‐to‐date information. 
 

f) Improve outreach to special groups such as 
seniors, children and school groups 

Many programs are already available  to  special 
groups around  the  region.   Bay Trail can match 
existing  programs with  Bay  Trail messages  and 
provide  materials,  such  as  maps  at  the 
Exploratorium  and  brochures  at  the  Palo  Alto 
EcoCenter. 

g) Develop  a  list  server  for  communicating 
with Bay Trail advocates 

Consider  a  list  server  as  a  new  tool  for  public 
communication, replacing the newsletter. 

 

Objective	6.		Increase	the	organizational	capacity	of	the	Bay	Trail	Project	by	
enhancing	the	effectiveness	of	its	staff	and	board	of	directors	

 

a) Activate  the  Bay  Trail  Project’s  board  of 
directors and seek additional members who 
represent  new  or  under‐represented 
constituencies 

Consider  environmental  groups,  under‐
represented  geographic  and  trail  gap  areas, 
utility representatives, shoreline‐related business 
and  development  as well  as  board  composition 
that  can  assist  with  a  changing  funding 
landscape.   

Adding capacity to the board  is under discussion 
with  the  Steering  Committee  and  the  Board  of 
Directors to address the public funding reduction.

 

b) Retain  sufficient  staff  to  implement  the 
organization's  mission/strategic  plan  and 
provide staff development opportunities  

The  current  staff  capacity  is  sufficient  to 
implement  the  organization’s  mission  and 
strategic plan. 

c) Make  use  of    volunteer  and  pro‐bono 
services for the Bay Trail Project 

Creative  involvement  of  skilled  volunteers,  i.e. 
bloggers,  photographers,  can  expand  staff 
capacity. 

d) Develop  Bay  Trail  advocacy  and 
stewardship  teams  focused  on  cities, 
counties  or  specific  trail  projects  or 
segments 

More  involvement  from  the  Board  of  Directors 
can help address this need. 

 



History of Bay Trail Board membership* 
 

State Legislature  original board, not currently 

California Coastal Conservancy  current representation 

   

Metropolitan Transportation Commission  current representation 

S.F. Bay Conservation and Development Commission  current representation 

     

(4) Representatives of Cities appointed to BCDC by 
ABAG’s Executive Board  

never represented 

Representatives of Counties  previous representation, not currently 

   

California Department of Parks and Recreation  previous representation, not currently 

National Park Service, Rivers and Trails Conservation 
Assistance Program 

current representation 

Regional Park and Open Space Districts  current representation (multiple) 

Regional Bicycle Advisory Committee  previous representation, not currently 

County Parks & Recreation Departments  current representation (multiple) 

Hayward Area Shoreline Planning Agency  current representation 

Ridge Trail Council  current representation 

   

Save San Francisco Bay Association  current representation 

Land Trusts  original board, not currently 

Audubon Society  never represented 

Sierra Club, San Francisco Bay Chapter  original board, not currently 

Wetlands Coalitions  never represented 

   

Pacific Gas & Electric Co.  current representation 

Leslie Salt co.  current representation (Cargill) 

Bay Planning Coalition  current representation 

   

League of Women Voters  previous representation, not currently 

   

California Conservation Corps  previous representation, not currently 

City/county elected official  previous representation, not currently 

Port  current representation 

Bicycle coalition  current representation 

City parks department  current representation 

Department of Transportation  current representation 

Congestion Management Agency  current representation 

Advocacy organization  current representation 

Private citizen  current representation (multiple) 

   

 

*Representative organizations listed in bylaws are shown in bold. 



SAVE THE DATE ! 
 

Bay Trail Winter Board Meeting 
and Holiday Party 

 
Dear Fellow Bay Trail Board Members: 
 
This is an early invitation to Save the Date for our Semi-Annual Board Meeting, 
Thursday December 12, 3:00-6:30 p.m. at Cerruti Cellars, 100 Webster 
Street (at Embarcadero), Jack London Square, Oakland.  It is also my 
announcement, with some regret, of my resignation as Chair, because I will be 
retiring at the end of the year and leaving the Bay Area. 
 
You will notice that the meeting is scheduled a little later this year, and a little 
longer than usual.  We will have a full agenda continuing our discussion of the 
newly adopted Strategic Plan and 2014 Work Program, a Marketing Plan update, 
board member participation and the recruitment of new board members.  A 
meeting agenda, with directions and details about the schedule, will follow in the 
next few weeks. Steering Committee members, you’ll need to arrive a little early 
for a quick meeting from 2:30 – 3:00. 
 
But we really don’t plan to burden you with a four-hour meeting.  I wanted to end 
the meeting with a party—to celebrate the season, the Bay Trail and its 
accomplishments, our good staff and ourselves.  We will have wine tasting and 
hors d’oeuvres.   
 
I want to thank you all for your participation in and support of this great project.  
I will look forward to seeing you in December, to welcome in the new year and 
the next era for the Bay Trail.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Brian Wiese, Chair 



 
 
 
 

 
 
November 14, 2013 
 
San Francisco Bay Trail Project Board of Directors 
PO Box 2050 
Oakland, CA  94604 
 
Subject:  Appointment of Board Chair 
 
Directors: 
 
Thank you for considering me for the position of chair of the Board of Directors of the San 
Francisco Bay Trail Project.  I am honored by your interest and am willing to serve, with the 
understanding that this will be a two-year position.   
 
The San Francisco Bay Trail is one of three significant regional trails.  Along with the Bay  
Area Ridge Trail and California Coastal Trail, it links with local communities and local trails 
to provide a truly great network of non-motorized trails.  In addition to providing recreation 
and educational opportunities, these trails also help focus and support related land 
conservation efforts.    
 
I started working with the Bay Trail Project in the mid-1990’s in my role with the Bay Area 
Open Space Council, and I joined the Board (I think) in 2004.  During this time the Bay Trail 
Project has accomplished a lot.  I have been particularly impressed with the value of the Bay 
Trail Project while working in Napa County over the past eight years.  The support services 
and vision provided by the organization have been invaluable to our local efforts to provide 
public access to and along the perimeter of the tidal wetlands, particularly along the Napa 
River.  We would have made little if any progress without the assistance and encouragement 
of the Bay Trail Project Board and staff.  It’s time for me to give a little back. 
 
Despite past progress, the next few years will be especially challenging, The remaining gaps 
in the Bay Trail are the most difficult to close.  The funding sources that have fueled progress 
over the past 15 years are largely exhausted.  Along with the recovery of the economy, 
pressure to develop remaining open spaces along the bay edge is once again increasing.  It 
would be very rewarding for me to join with the rest of the Board in meeting the challenges 
of the next few years. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
John Woodbury 

John Woodbury 
General Manager 

1195 Third Street, Room 210, Napa, California 94559 
telephone:  707-259-5933      fax:  707-299-4471 www.NapaOutdoors.org 


	1_Agenda.pdf
	2_Draft Board Minutes 06-27-13
	3_Restoration Authority Memo
	4_Restoration Authority Brochure
	BayRA Brochure - FINAL PRINT VERSION_6
	proof2-STB

	5_restoration wetland map
	6_Marketing memo
	7_Event org list
	8_2013 Q4 Update
	9_2013 Bay Trail Accomplishments
	10_Priority Task Memo
	11_2014 Bay Trail Priority Tasks
	12_2013-2018 Strategic Plan
	13_History of Bay Trail Board membership
	14_Brian's resignation letter
	15_John's chair consideration ltr

